
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Monica Bell, Democratic Services (01254) 380114 
Email:  monica.bell@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Wednesday, 6 December 2017 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Thursday, 14 December 2017 at 10.00 am, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Abdul Khan 
 
Councillors Lisa Allen, Jean Battle, Stephen Button, Terry Hurn, Jenny Molineux, Tim O'Kane and 
Paddy Short 
Cooptees: Ian Ormerod and Paul Barton 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

2.   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
To submit the Minutes of the meeting of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 26th October 2017 for approval as a correct record. 

Recommended - That the Minutes be received and approved as a 
correct record. 

 

3.   Changes to the Recycling Service  (Pages 7 - 10) 
 
To update the Committee on the changes to the Council’s Recycling / Waste Collection 
Service. 

Recommended - That the Committee notes the updates within the 
report and make any comments. 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
 

4.   Environmental Services Work Plan / Update  (Pages 11 - 18) 
 
To update the Committee on the latest developments in Environmental Services. 

Recommended - That the Committee notes the updates within the 
report and makes comments. 

 

 
 



 
1 

 
RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Thursday, 26th October, 2017 

 
Present:  Councillor Abdul Khan (in the Chair),  

Councillors Lisa Allen, Jean Battle, Stephen Button, Terry Hurn and 
Tim O'Kane 
 
Co-optee:  Paul Barton 
 

In Attendance: Councillor Clare Cleary, Portfolio Holder for Housing and Regeneration 

  

Apologies: Councillor Jenny Molineux and Ian Ormerod (Co-optee) 
 

 
1 Death of Councillor Paul Thompson 

 
The Chair informed the Committee of the death that morning of Councillor Paul Thompson. 
 
A minutes silence was held as a mark of respect. 
 

2 Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillor Jenny Molineux and Ian Ormerod 
(Co-optee). 
 

3 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

4 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved - That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local 

Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during the following item, when it was likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be transacted, or 
the nature of the proceedings, that there would 
otherwise be disclosure of exempt information within 
the Paragraph at Schedule 12A of the Act specified at 
the item. 

 
5 Asset Activity 

 
(Exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3  -  
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information)) 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Housing and Regeneration submitted an update report relating to 
the disposal of Council assets which was carried out on a demand basis and in response to 
market forces.  Details of the many minor leases for land and buildings owned by the 
Council were not included, as those were too numerous and changed frequently upon 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

renewal and were also part of the day to day operations of the Property Team.  Responses 
were given in relation to the following issues raised by the Committee:- 
 

 Reinvestment of Capital Receipts 

 Capital Receipts Generated Target and Performance Against Target 

 Disposal of Assets Identified by the Scrutiny Panel 

 Active Marketing of Sites Identified by the Scrutiny Panel 

 Challenges in Place for Disposal of Council Assets and Increased Disposal of 
Redundant Assets 

 Information on Proposed Sales Detailed in Section 3 of the Report 

 Development Delivery and Associated Planning Approvals 

 Provision of Bungalows 

 Sale of Assets to Community Groups 

 Management of Assets by Community Groups 
 
Resolved - That the report be noted. 
 
 
AT THIS POINT IN THE PROCEEDINGS, THE MEETING WAS OPENED UP TO THE 
PUBLIC 
 
 

6 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 7th 
September 2017 were submitted for approval as a correct record.   
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

7 Accrington Town Centre Update Report (including Accrington Market Hall) 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Housing and Regeneration submitted an update report on 
Accrington Town Centre which included Accrington Market Hall.  A comprehensive 
Accrington Town Centre Report which summarised the Vitality and Viability of the Town 
Centre, including retail, office accommodation, leisure, planning policy and investment was 
attached as Appendix 1 to the update report.  Responses were given in relation to the 
following issues raised by the Committee:- 
 

 Planned Town Centre Events and Budget 

 Benchmarking 

 Accrington Pals Memorial and Celebration 

 Project Completion 

 Participation in Restoration of Shop Fronts and Non Participation Effect on Events  

 Section 106 Monies 

 Town Centre Business Manager 

 Planning Policy for Town Centre Living 

 Town Centre Car Parking 

 Peel Street 

 Attracting Large Retailers to the Town Centre 

 Joint Working with the Arndale Centre on Parking and Vacant Unit Issues 

 Market Hall and Outside Market Income 

 Addressing Anti-Social Behaviour and Crime in the Town Centre 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
3 

 Quality of Town Centre Office Space 

 Lowering of Business Rates to Encourage New Retailers 

 Future Improvements to Town Centre Premises 

 People with Disabilities 

Resolved (1) That Cabinet be commended for the welcome 
appointment of a Business and Marketing Co-ordinator 
for Accrington Town Centre;  

 (2) That Cabinet be requested to consider a review of the 
Market Hall Business Plan and improvements to the 
Outside Market to be a priority;  

 (3) That in order to support the future vitality of Accrington 
Town Centre, the Cabinet be requested to address the 
following initiatives which had been identified in the 
report submitted to the Committee: 

 Regular Programme of Events 

 Town Centre Wi-Fi 

 Faster Broadband 

 Reduction in Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour 

 Improve Marketing and Public Relations 

 (4) That Cabinet be requested to consider the Access Audit 
Report for Accrington Town Centre commissioned by 
Hyndburn Disability Forum. 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO: Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

DATE: 14 December 2017 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Paul Cox - Deputy Leader - Environmental Services 

REPORT AUTHOR: Steve Riley – Head of Environmental Services 

TITLE OF REPORT: Changes to the recycling service 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To update Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the changes to the 

recycling / waste collection service. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 The Committee notes the updates within the report and make any comments. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 Waste Collections and Street Cleansing are services resident’s value highly but 

following the severe reductions in funding from Central Government / Lancashire 
County Council and increasing costs, Hyndburn, along with every other Council in the 
country is having to make tough decisions around the services it can financially 
provide. The level of reduction from LCC alone is around £820k per annum from April 
2018, (Cost Share and Recycling Income). 

 
3.2 EU member states are already legally obliged to recycle 50% of their waste by 2020, a 

target most are struggling to meet, including the UK. Providing wheeled bins for 
recycling will hopefully make it easier for households to increase their recycling levels, 
help Hyndburn hit its target and also reduce the amount of waste we send to landfill. 
Wheeled bins are also viewed by residents as a big improvement in storing and 
presenting their recycling for collection. Residents have also commented that it would 
greatly reduce the potential of wind-blown litter from the current recycling bags. The 
plan is for the new service to go live for properties in the North of the Borough 3rd week 
in June 2018 and 1st week in July 2018 South of the Borough.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 3.



3.3 In 2015, the Head of Environmental Services was tasked with identifying ways of 
tackling the reduced income through savings and/or income generation. A range of 
suggestions was put forward to Cabinet in 2016, one of which involved changes to the 
existing recycling collection service which would provide annual savings in the region 
of £250k.  

 
3.4 Whilst providing significant savings to help balance the budget, the changes will also 

make it easier for residents to manage their waste and see collections for terrace 
properties move to the back street. The main changes to the collection service will be 
as follows;  

 
• Moving away from kerbside sorting to co-mingling collections for recycling.  
• Provide each household with two new 240 litre wheeled bins for recycling 

(standard size). Where the property does not have a grey wheeled bin, (bag 
collections) they will continue to use the existing recycling blue and white bags 
and blue box.  

• Collections for terrace properties will move to the rear back street or where 
residents present their grey wheeled bin.  

• The standardisation of all the Council’s waste collection vehicles will allow for a 
reduction in the overall numbers operated. 

• A reduced level of operation staff. 
• Households will be allocated a dedicated collection crew, collecting recycling 

and non-recycling waste depending on the collection week. 
• Household waste will be separated into the following streams. 

 

a) STREAM 1 Paper and Cardboard (brown bin) 
b) STREAM 2 Glass, Cans and Plastics (blue bin) 
c) STREAM 3 Garden Waste, if subscribed (green bin) 
d) STREAM 4 Non recyclables, ‘Refuse’ (grey bin) 

 

3.5 Whilst there will be a number of changes that residents will notice. There are many 
areas of the service that will not change, such as; 

 
• The Council will continue to push to increase its recycling rate and reduce the 

amount of waste sent to landfill, which will ultimately help keep landfill costs to 
residents down.  

• There will be no reduction in the quality of the collection service provided by 
staff, although some collection days may alter if further operational efficiencies 
can be found. 

• The Council will still collect waste from households every week. Recycling 
waste one week and non-recycling waste the following week. 

• The Borough’s collections with still operate split North / South for recycling / 
refuse collections. 

• The bulky collection service will still operate on the household’s grey bin day, 
unless it can be recycled or needs separate disposal and therefore has to be 
collected in a separate vehicle. 

• Collections crews will still remove fly-tipped waste from back streets and other 
areas close by on the grey bin collection day. 

Page 8



• Enforcement Officers will still be working with the crews to tackle fly-tipping, 
bins out early/not returned, abandoned vehicles, skips in back streets etc. 

• Mechanical sweeping will still follow the day after waste collection day in terrace 
areas / back streets. 

 
3.5 Key Highlights of the implementation Programme are as follows; 
 

• Officers are already highlighting and considering options for properties with 
access issues, communal collections points, reduced storage space etc. 

• Households will receive an information pack, which includes a 2 year calendar 
during April / May 2018, prior to receiving delivery of the new wheeled bins. 

• The two bins will be delivered by an external delivery contractor (with possibly 4 
teams) over a four/five week period. 

• There will be two members of HBC staff with each delivery team to discuss and 
resolve any resident concerns on the day. 

• There will be a dedicated response team, (with suitable collection vehicle/s) 
that can respond to any resident or collection issues during an agreed period 
where the service beds-in.  

• The Council will have a small number of 140 liter bins for households with 
access issues or residents that have difficulties maneuvering the standard size 
bin. 

• Households are free to retain or dispose of the blue and white bags and blue 
box. The Council will not be offering a separate collection service.  

 
3.6 The Council’s garden waste collection service moved to a subscription service 

effective of 1 August 2017. At the end of October 2017, the number of subscription 
stickers purchased / printed stood at 4,774.  

 
3.7  The Leader of the Council, in conjunction with Cabinet set the subscription at £30 per 

bin, per annum. Income from subscriptions is currently standing at £143k which covers 
the baseline costs of the driver, loader, vehicle, fuel, leaflets/stickers, temporary 
contact centre staff to take payments over the phone and some but not all of the back 
office admin/management costs. Whilst it is anticipated this figure will rise, the service 
is suspended during December to February so subscriptions may not start up again 
until March / April 2018. 

 
3.8 It has been agreed that residents will be able to subscribe to the 2018/19 collection 

year from 1st July 2018 and in line with this year new (different coloured) stickers will 
be posted out once payment has been received. 

 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Do nothing is not an option. The Council is facing continued reduction in its income 

from Central Government, LCC and cost increase and it is not possible to maintain the 
current level of service the Council provides. 

  
4.2 Even with the savings generated from the implementation of the new recycling service, 

and additional income generated from the garden waste subscription service, Cabinet 

Page 9



Members will be required to considered additional savings and/or income generation 
suggestions from the Service Area of Wider Corporate Budgets to meet any shortfall.  

 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Cabinet Members and Corporate Management Team. 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

It is forecast that the Council will need to 
continue looking for substantial revenue 
savings as a result of reduced central 
government settlements. 
The loss of income from Lancashire County 
Council within Waste Services is estimated to 
be in the region of £820k pa from April 2018. 
Increased recycling will mean a reduction in 
the cost of sending waste to landfill. 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

The Council has a statutory responsibility 
under the Environmental Protection Act 1990 
to provide a waste collection service to 
domestic households. 

Assessment of risk 
 

The Council must identify sufficient savings 
and/or generate additional income to 
formulate a balanced budget for the financial 
year 2018/19 and beyond. 
Any reduction in service provision and/or 
implementation of charges could receive 
negative feedback and/or complaints.  
Where charges are proposed, other non-
chargeable options could help reduce the 
level of complaints.  

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

There are no equality and diversity issues to 
be addressed in relation to this report. 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 Not applicable as the report is for update and information only. 
 
 

Page 10

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


REPORT TO: Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

DATE: 14 December 2017 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Paul Cox - Deputy Leader - Environmental Services 

REPORT AUTHOR: Steve Riley – Head of Environmental Services 

Craig Haraben – Deputy Head of Environmental Services 

TITLE OF REPORT: Environmental Services Work Plan / Update 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To update Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the latest developments in 

Environmental Services. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 The Committee notes the updates within the report and makes comments. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 In early 2017, the Council’s Chief Executive along with the Director of Finance and 

Legal Services asked all Service Managers to identify their major projects / targets for 
the financial year 2017/18. These were identified by the Head and Deputy Head of 
Environmental Services at a meeting held on 13 March 2017, along with all the 
Council’s Service Managers. The projects / targets were split into the various service 
areas within Environmental Services. 

 
3.2 On 11 September 2017, a further meeting with Service Managers was held who 

provided a 6 monthly update. Each project / target and a brief description is provided 
within this report.  

  
 
 Waste Services 
3.3 To implement the smooth transition of fixed working hours following the removal of 

Stint and Finish for Waste Collections staff.  
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4.



3.3.1 Supervisors have been working with Team Leaders and collection crews to ensure 
there is an even spread of workloads across the rounds and looking at efficiencies in 
collection routes across the Borough. Management and operational staff have worked 
together to resolve a number of issues to ensure that collection crews are completing 
all the allocated working within the new standard working day/week.  

 
3.3.2 Whilst there have been a small number of occasions where staff have worked past 

their normal finishing time of 2:59pm, this has been for genuine ‘one off’ reasons 
outside the crew’s control, such as delays on the landfill site, major roadworks on 
Dunkenhalgh Way / Clayton, multiple vehicle breakdowns. Ultimately crews have all 
worked together to complete the collections.   

 
3.4 The introduction of a charge for garden waste collections. 
 
3.4.1 The Council’s garden waste collection service moved to a subscription service with 

effect from 1 August 2017. At the end of October 2017, the number of subscription 
stickers purchased / printed stood at 4,774.  

 
3.4.2 The Leader of the Council, in conjunction with Cabinet set the subscription at £30 per 

bin, per annum. Income from subscriptions is currently standing at £143k which covers 
the baseline costs of the driver, loader, vehicle, fuel, leaflets/stickers, temporary 
contact centre staff to take payments over the phone and some but not all of the back 
office admin/management costs. Whilst it is anticipated this figure will rise, the service 
is suspended during December to February annually so subscriptions may not start to 
come through again until March / April 2018. 

 
3.4.3 Procedures are in place to allow residents to subscribe to the 2018/19 collection year 

from 1st July 2018, where a different coloured sticker will be posted after payment has 
been received. 

 
3.5 The delivery of 2 coloured wheeled bins to replace the existing recycling bags and 

box. 
 
3.5.1 The Council agreed to allocate sufficient capital funding for the supply and delivery of 

2 wheeled bins to all properties within the Borough. Whilst the vast majority to 
properties can accommodate wheeled bins, there are a number that cannot, (due to 
access issues) and so they will continue to store/present their recycling in the 
blue/white bags and blue box. 

 
3.5.2 The tender for the supply and delivery of the bins is currently ongoing with the 

successful supplier being awarded the tender before the end of December 2017. 
Deliveries are planned to take place during May/June 2018, with the new service 
commencing 3rd week in June for properties in the North of the Borough and 1st week 
in July for properties in the South of the Borough. 

 
3.5.3 As part of the vehicle replacement programme, the Council will receive a new fleet of 

collection vehicles suitable for recycling collections utilising the wheeled bins prior to 
the new service commencing. 

 

Page 12



3.5.4 Residents will receive an information pack in April/May prior to receiving delivery of 
their new wheeled bins. It will be made clear that bins will remain the property of the 
Council and are provided to the property for the storage of waste and not the property 
of the resident.  

 
3.6 Waste Services Enforcement  
 
3.6.1 One of the final pieces of work within project my.hyndburn was the creation of a 

mobile platform to improve the efficiency and management of the system for 
enforcement officers issuing fixed penalty notices (FPN’s).  

 
3.6.2 The Head of Environmental Services requested a move away from officers writing out 

notices onsite from a pre-printed book, to a mobile process that integrated with the 
Council CRM system. Officers within ICT and the Council’s Systems Manager have 
been liaising with the Enforcement Officers and Legal Services to create an electronic 
mobile work process incorporating the use of iPhone’s. The new technology allows 
officers to record all the relevant details, plus attach photographs for evidence and 
allows officers to automatically produce the FPN (letter/ticket). There will be a record 
of this information on the Council CRM system. The process will also provide for 
reminder letters and also highlight to the officers when it needs escalating to the 
Council’s legal section for prosecution where no payment has been made.  

 
 
 Food and Safety 
3.7 To improve compliance in food premises within the Borough and reduce the number of 

non-complaint premises. 
 
3.7.1 As of 23 November 2017 the Food Hygiene Rating Website showed the Borough had 

76 non-compliant premises, although some premises are still in standstill / appeal 
period so this figure is always moving. Officers are currently working with ‘0’ and ‘1’ 
rated premises as a priority and have served seventeen enforcement notices since the 
start of the financial year. Premises rated ‘0’ have now reduced from eighteen to six 
and currently account for only 0.9% of our food businesses. Premises rated a ‘1’ have 
also reduced, from 75 to 42 and currently account for 6.5% of our food businesses. 
Finally, premises rated ‘2’ have now reduced from 39 to 28 and currently account for 
4.3% of our food businesses. At the time of writing almost 88% of food premises within 
Hyndburn are compliant (rated ‘3’ or above). 

 
 
3.7.2 Following a discussion with the Council’s Corporate Management Team, funding was 

approved to undertake a project to improve food hygiene ratings across the Borough. 
The project is called ‘The Hyndburn Boost Project’ and will run from September 2017 
to March 2018. It will look to improve non-compliance businesses, (‘0’, ‘1’ and ‘2’ rated 
businesses) via targeted workshops, coaching and consultancy visits. Promotional 
work commenced early September and targeted workshops took place in October and 
November. These were segregated into business food types – Asian, Chinese, 
Pizza/Takeaway, Pub/Restaurant and Retail. Re-visits will follow the workshops with 
promotional activity for those businesses who achieve a ‘5’ hygiene rating during the 
project time frame. 

Page 13



 
3.7.4 Individual coaching and consultancy visits will be taking place during January to 

February targeting any premises which remain non-compliant. Whilst the attendance 
to the workshops/acceptance of coaching and general ‘buy-in’ is not mandatory, 
Officers will take a strong enforcement line against any premises that is still non-
compliant after the project has finished. 

 
 
3.8 To maintain the service plan and meet Performance Indicators within the annual Food 

and Safety Business Plan. 
 
3.8.1 February 2017 saw two members of staff commence maternity leave, this left just 1.5 

FTE officers within the team. It was necessary to appoint two agency contractors on a 
part time basis (2 days a week each) during July and August. Whilst one will be 
remaining until the requirement for maternity cover ends, a further contractor was 
appointed on a full time basis from September until the requirement for maternity cover 
ends. 

 
3.8.2 The number of scheduled inspections due between 1 September 2017 and 31 March 

2018 is 182 giving an average of 26 per month. This figure is achievable with the 
current level of resources within the team, given all the other work that is undertaken 
during the year. 

 
3.8.3 In an effort to provided further improvements, the Food and Safety Manager is also 

looking at the use of mobile technology to increase efficiencies during the on-site 
inspection process. 

 
 
 Health and Safety/Emergency Planning 
3.9 Develop an effective ‘One Stop Shop’ management system for all Health and Safety 

information 
 
3.9.1 The Council’s Health and Safety Officer has created a single location on the Council’s 

shared network where any member of the Council’s staff can access and view any 
relevant Business Continuity Management Plan, Policies and Procedures, Risk 
Assessments, Safe Working Procedures, Building Risk Assessment, Fire Risk 
Assessment, Security Risk Assessment, Guidance Documents ACOPS, Training 
Presentations, Health and Safety Forms, Accident Incidents Database. 

 
3.9.2  The Officer has spent time with all relevant Line Managers / Service Heads to walk 

through the new system. The creation of this single location for information promotes 
self-monitoring and therefore will hopefully ensures documents and policies, 
procedures are regularly reviewed and updated by the relevant managers in each 
service area. This is a ‘living’ database of information and other documents will be 
uploaded where there is a need to share information between staff / across the 
Council.  

  
 
  

Page 14



Parks & Open Spaces  
 3.9 Refurbish Rhyddings Park via Heritage Lottery Project 
 
3.9.1 The majority of landscape work in the park has been completed. This includes a 

refurbished amphitheatre area on the site of the old play area, entrance 
improvements, footpath improvements, Italianate garden refurbished, an orchard 
planted and field drainage. Planting works are due to be completed December 2017. 

 
3.9.2 Stone work is being cleaned and refurbished throughout the park as part of this 

project. The market cross has been cleaned and moved to its new location at the 
Rhyddings Street entrance of the park. The Folly has been repaired and copings 
added to afford better weather protection and the metal work re-painted. The gate 
posts and finials for all entrances, (except Fielding Lane) have been cleaned and 
repaired. The Japanese lantern has been cleaned and re-installed in the Italianate 
gardens, as it was originally in this area of the park. The drinking fountain is currently 
off site at the stone masons work shop being cleaned and repaired, ready for 
installation in the kitchen garden when this has been constructed.  

 
3.9.3 Building work started in October 2017 to refurbish and extend the old coach house, 

construct a new service building and form a kitchen garden area. To date the 
boundary wall has been stabilised, foundations laid, block work started and new glass 
house for the kitchen garden has been ordered. The old service building will be 
demolished during December to make way for the new facility. Building works are due 
to be completed by May 2018. 

 
3.10 Retain Green Flag Status for Green Flag Parks 
3.10.1 The Council continues to achieve green flag status for some of its key green spaces. 

The Council was awarded Green Flag status for eight of its sites for 17/18, which is 
the joint highest for a local authority within Lancashire.  

 
3.10.2 The Borough’s green flag sites are: Accrington Cemetery, Mercer Park, Oakhill Park, 

Wilsons & Woodlands, Lowerfold Park, Peel Park & Coppice, Gatty Park and Cutwood 
Park. 

 
3.10.3 There is a requirement from the Heritage Lottery Fund that Rhyddings Park is 

submitted for Green Flag status once the refurbishment work has been completed. It is 
intended that Rhyddings Park will be submitted for the 2019 green flag judging round. 

 
 
 Cemetery & Crematorium Service 
3.11 New Cemetery on Lee Lane 
 
3.11.1 The construction of the new cemetery on Lee Lane continues. The entrance features, 

roads and drainage have been installed. During December the planting of trees, 
hedging plants and shrubs will be undertaken in addition to starting to build a 
boundary wall along the eastern boundary. 

 
3.11.2 The aim is to have the new cemetery ready to open for Spring 2018. 
 

Page 15



3.12 New Sound and Multi Media System for the Crematorium 
3.12.1 A new visual tribute system has now been installed in the crematorium. This means 

the music system has further been upgraded so people have a choice of music from 
over 50,000 songs on the system.  

 
3.12.2 The system provides the ability, via screens in the crematorium, to have a visual 

tribute of just a single photo or up to 25 photos with or without music accompaniment 
as part of the service.  

 
3.12.3 An additional function for webcasting is now available so any family members, who 

live abroad or just can’t make the funeral, can watch the service live over the internet. 
Since the installation of the equipment, services at Accrington Crematorium have been 
viewed by relatives in Canada, Australia and USA. There are also two TV screens and 
new speakers in the glass annex, (plus external speakers) so for large services, 
people stood in that area can both see and hear what is going on. 

 
3.12.4 All these things have been installed at the crematorium to ensure families have as 

much choice as possible to personalise services. 
 
 
 Pest Control & Dog Warden Service 
3.13 Pest Control Service 
 
3.13.1 The pest control team continues to undertake pest control services on behalf of both 

domestic and commercial clients. 
 
3.13.2 During financial year 16/17, the pest control service was asked to undertake over 

2,000 pest control jobs, in addition to their contract work.  
 
3.13.3 In 2017, the pest control service has started to offer a chargeable service to undertake 

pest proofing work for clients, undertake drain camera surveys and has the ability to 
undertake sterilisation work for clients who need kitchens or other surfaces cleaned 
thoroughly once unwanted pests have been eradicated. 

 
3.14 Dog Warden Service   
3.14.1 The dog warden continues to regularly patrol the Borough and take proactive action in 

relation to dog related issues. 
 
3.14.2 During the financial year 16/17, the dog warden dealt with 68 stray dogs, 192 reports 

of dog fouling, 63 dangerous dogs, 26 lost dogs, 83 found dogs and issued 27 Fixed 
Penalty Notices. 

 
3.14.3 In addition, during 16/17, working in partnership with the Dogs Trust, the dog warden 

has put on a number of educational / information events for dog owners. This involved 
free micro chipping for any dog still not chipped and a free dog health-check. 

 
 
 
 

Page 16



 Budget Savings / Service Efficiencies 
 
3.15 As directed by Cabinet and Corporate Management Team, the Service Area will 

continue to look to identify any savings through increased efficiencies or additional 
income during the remaining financial 2017/18 and offer suggestions for the financial 
year 2018/19. 

 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Do nothing. The Council is facing a reduction in income from Central Government, 

LCC and cost increases from goods/services and pressures for waste increases. It is 
therefore not possible to maintain the current level of service provided. 

  
4.2 Options for additional savings for 2018/19 will be proposed to Cabinet members for 

their consideration early next year. 
 
4.3 It is unlikely that even with the savings generated from any new service provision 

within Waste Services and implementation of new charges; it still may be insufficient to 
off-set the £850,000 reduction in income from LCC and therefore further decisions 
around the funding of waste collection services may have to be considered by Cabinet 
Members in 2018/19.  

 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Cabinet Members, Portfolio Holder/s and Corporate Management Team. 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

It is forecast that the Council will need to 
continue looking for substantial revenue 
savings as a result of reduced central 
government settlements. 
The loss of income from Lancashire County 
Council within Waste Services is estimated to 
be in the region of £850,000 pa from April 
2018. 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

The Council has a statutory responsibility 
under the Environmental Protection Act 1990 
to provide a waste collection service to 
domestic households. 

Assessment of risk 
 

The Council must identify sufficient savings 
and/or generate additional income to 
formulate a balanced budget for the financial 
year 2018/19 and beyond. 
Any reduction in service provision and/or 
implementation of charges could receive 

Page 17



negative feedback and/or complaints. Where 
charges are proposed, other non-chargeable 
options would help reduce the level of 
complaints.  

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

There are no equality and diversity issues to 
be addressed in relation to this report. 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 Not applicable as the report is for update and information only. 
 
 

Page 18

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407

	Agenda
	2. Minutes of Last Meeting
	3. Changes to the Recycling Service
	4. Environmental Services Work Plan / Update

